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Sweetwater Plantation, which was completed in 1835 as the home of a wealthy
planter, is a two-story brick structure of late Georgian massing and influence. One
of the few early buildings in the Florence vicinity which has retained its original
porches, Sweetwater is noted for its simplicity of design, its unusual end-wall '
chimneys and its bracketed cornice.

The house is located on the outskirts of the City of Florence and much of the
original 4,000 acre plantation has been sold for subdivisions. The original gardens
were elaborate and were the finest in the area. At present a mussell shell drive
leads from the main gate to the house. Boxwood hedge imported from England borders
the front walk and leads to a small boardered circular walk around a fountain. Two
large magnolia trees obscure the facade of the house.

The structure is rectangular in plan, measuring approximately 62 feet by 48 feet,
with the main entrance located on the long side. The welded tin roof is hipped and the
slightly overhanging cornice is supported on the facade with small console brackets
with molded trim beneath. The facade is further distinguished from the remaining
elevations by the treatment of the brick, which here is laid in Flemish Bond. The
remaining walls are of common bond. A central one-story portico has four tapered box
columns supporting an entablature which is surmounted with a balustrade. Stucco and
pilasters under the portico set the entrance apart. The double-leaf door with eight

recessed panels is topped with a transom and flanked by sidelights with a leaded
-'design alternating circles with ovals. The trim is fluted with corner blocks. All
windows of the building are 12/12 double hung, with fluted trim, corner blocks,
flat arches and sshutters. - - .

Two end-wall chimneys are located on both the south and north elevations. Three
second floor windows are located between the chimneys on the south where a small
pedimented iporti¢o is flanked by two windows. Entrance beneath the pertico is-a single
door topped with a rectangular transom.

A single story shed-roof porch supported by tapered square colums runs the length
of the rear of the house. In the early 1900's the northern quarter of the porch was bricked
in and extended to provide for a kitchen. Originally, three single doors opened onto the
porch.

The interior is divided by a central hall measuring 16 feet by 48 feet and a double
run stair with landing is located on the rear wall. Four large rooms are located on each
floor and each of the rooms contains carrara marble mantels consisting of Ionic columns
supporting a simple entablature. A small side hall originally opened onto the side
portico, but has been altered and at present the side door opens directly onto a flight
of stairs leading to the second floor. Interior walls are of plaster and originally were
papered. Shreds of the original border paper remain in the front hall. Interior door and
window trim is fluted with corner blocks and most doors have eight recessed panels. Floors
and ceilings are intact. The major alterations to the house have been the addition of the
kitchén, and the alteration to the side entrance and stair hall to allow for bathrooms on
the second floor.
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To the east of the main house is a small one-story, gabled roof, brick and frame
structure originally used as a kitchen. Frame additions were made to the structure
sometime during the early 20th Century.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Sweetwater Plantation is one of the finer late Georgian houses in North Alabama and
is most noted as the home of Robert Miller Patton, the first elected governor of Alabama
after the collapse of the Confederacy. Patton's governorship was terminated with the end
of the presidential era of Reconstruction.

Robert M. Patton was born in Virginia in 1809 and as a child moved with his family to
Huntsville, Alabama where he attended Green Academy. As a young man Patton operated what
is believed to be one of the first cotton gins in Alabama and was founder of the Bell
Cotton -Factory, one of the earliest textile mills in the: state. In 1829, Patton moved to
Florence where in 1832, he was elected to the State Legislature from Lauderdale County.

In the same year he married Jane Brahan and shortly thereafter acquired control over
the vast Sweetwater Plantation at the death of his father-in-law, John Brahan.

Brahan had served as a general in the War of 1812 with Andrew Jackson and in 1818
moved to Huntsville where he was appointed commissioner of public lands by Jackson.
Brahan acquired a 4,000 acre plantation along Sweetwater Creek near Florencterand-ishortly
before his death began construction of the main house. The structure was completed by
Patton in 1835. ¢ v sl T e A

A prominent Whig, Patton served in one or the other of the houses of the'legislature
almost continuously from 1837 to the outbreak of the Civil War, and was president of the
Senate several times, holding that office at the outbreak of hostilities. He served as a
member of the 1860 Charleston Convention and the State Convention which passed the
L\\ secession ordinance. Although, he opposed secession he gave strong support to the
Tonfederacy throughout the War.

t

' In 1865, Patton represented Lauderdale County in the State Constitutional Convention

' and in November ran for Governor defeating Col. M.J. Bulger and Judge William R. Smith.

' His administration was conducted under difficulties arising out of the conflicting
sentiments of the people of the state and the hostile legislation of congress. His main
concern was to stabliize the fiscal condition of the state government.

In March of 1867, Congress passed the reconstruction acts and Patton was displaced by
Wager Swayne. After his displacement, Patton involved himself in the building of railroads
in the south and in the rebuilding of the University of Alabama. He organized an association
of eastern capitalist to connect Chattanooga, Mobile and New Orleans by rail and served as
President of the road from Chattanooga to Meridian. He also served as a trustee of several
Colleges and Universities, including Missouri State University, the University of Alabama,
Florence State, Normal College and the Florence Synodical Female College.
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At his death in 1855, his home passed to his daughter, Martha Patton Weeden. It
has remained in the Weeden Family possession since that time, and is presently owned
by the estate of J.D. Weeden.
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